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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors in submitting to the shareholders the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2023 report as follows:

Directors' Responsibility Statement

The Bank’s Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of
Zenith Bank (Ghana) Ltd’s financial position at 31 December 2023, and of the profit or loss and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards with the IAS 29
Directive issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants Ghana (ICAG), and in the manner required by the
Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), and the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930). In
addition, the directors are responsible for the preparation of this directors' report.

The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for
maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to
believe the business will not be a going concern.

Financial results and dividend

The financial results of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the attached financial
statements, highlights of which are as follows:

31 December 2023 2022

GH¢’ 000 GH¢’000
Profit/(loss) before tax is 1,022,388 (554,584)
from which is (deducted)/added tax of (346,288) 134,814
giving a profit/(loss) after tax for the year of 676,100 (419,770)
(Less)/add net transfer to statutory reserve fund and other reserves of 808 9,735
leaving a balance of 601,292 (410,035)
less dividend paid of - (152,000)
to which is added a balance brought forward on retained earnings of 127,765 689,799
leaving a balance of 729,057 127,764

In accordance with Section 34(1) (b) of the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930),
an amount of GH¢84,512,584 (2022: GH¢NIl) was transferred to the statutory reserve fund from profit for the year,
bringing the cumulative balance on the statutory reserve fund to GH¢529,411,072 (2022: GH¢444,898,488) at the
year end.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

Financial results and dividend (continued)

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023, just like for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Nature of Business

The Bank is authorised by Bank of Ghana to carry on the business of universal banking. There was no change in the
nature of business of the Bank during the year.

Holding Company

The Bank is a subsidiary of Zenith Bank Plc, a company incorporated in the Federal Republic of Nigeria and licensed
to undertake all banking and related services.

Interest in other Body Corporates
The Bank had no subsidiaries or associate entities during the year or as at year end.
Corporate Social Responsibilities

The Bank spent a total of GH¢832,304 (2022: GH¢ 609,662) on corporate social responsibilities during the year.
These are mainly in the form of educational scholarship for needy children and major social events.

Audit fee
Audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2023 is disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.
Capacity of directors

The Bank ensures that only fit and proper persons are appointed to the Board after obtaining the necessary approval
from the regulator, Bank of Ghana. Relevant training and capacity building programs, facilitated by the Ghana
Banking College and the Bank of Ghana, are put in place to enable the directors discharge their duties. All the
directors have been certified for attending such training during the year.

Directors

The names of the directors who served during the year are provided on page 1. No director had any interest at any
time during the year, in any contract of significance, other than a service contract with the Bank. No director had
interest in the shares of the Bank.

Auditor

The tenure of the current auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has come to an end in line with Section 81 (4) of the
Bank’s and Specilalised Deposit-taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930) having served for a period of six (6) years.
The bank has commenced the processes of getting a replacement in line with Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act,
2019 (Act 992) and Section 81 of the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements of the Bank were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2024 and were signed
on their behalf by:

Freda Duplan (Chairperson) Henry Chinedu Onwuzurigbo (MD/CEQO)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Annual Certification

In accordance with Section 12 of the Corporate Governance Directive, 2018 (CGD) , the Board hereby certifies that it
has complied with the requirements of the CGD for the period ended December 2023. Additionally, the Board
certifies that it has independently assessed and documented the corporate governance process of the Bank and can
confirm that the Bank’s directors are aware of their responsibilities to the institution as persons charged with
governance. The Bank has duly notified the Bank of Ghana about the outcome of this certification as follows:

January 25, 2024 el

e
/¥ RECEIVE
The Head, b I | A 7l
Banking Supervision Department, ’\,, J 1 ..In!'."i .d ]
Bank of Ghana, e LY /
1 Thorpe Road, g . ,};
Accra. _'l'..-,-j.;-.‘.;,"'-ﬂ

Dear Sir,

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE DIRECTIVE 2018

Pursuant to the foregoing Zenith Bank Ghana Limited wishes to certify that:

1 The Board has independently assessed that the corporate govermnmance processes of the Bank are effective
and have achieved their objectives;

2 The directors are aware of their responsibilities towards the Bank as persons charged with governance;

3 The Board will report to the Bank of Ghana any matenial deficiencies and weaknesses that it identifies in the
course of the year, along with action plans and time-tables for corrective action by the Board: and

4+ Members of the Board participated in a Governance Certification programme at the National Banking
College on corporate governance and director’s responsibifities for 2023.

Thank you.

Yours faithfully,
For: ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LIMITED

'Vx ]
M ol

DANIEL AGAMAH
Company Secretary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board can further confirm that for the year 2023, save for two directors who will complete one module during
the National Banking College’s mop-up session in February/March 2024, all directors successfully participated and
completed the Annual Corporate Governance Certification Program comprising three modules, being: Cyber Risk
Governance and Management for Directors; Fraud Risk Governance and Prevention for Directors; and Driving ESG
Practices: Board's Role from ESG Strategy to ESG Reporting. Confirmation from the National Banking College is

NATIONAL BANKING COLLEGE

Private Mail Bag Tel: 0302 760006/7 l Location: No. 3 Odoi Kwao Road ‘ Email: info@nbc.edu.gh
KIA, Accara-Ghana Fax: 0302 773109 Airport Residential Area Website: www.nbcedu.gh

November 13,2023

The Company Secretary
Zenith Bank, Ghana
Accra.

Aftention: Mr. Daniel Agamah

Dear Sir,
23 ANNUAL RP ATE ER NCE 1 R

In fulfilment of its annual mandate to certify Directors of Corporate Boards in Regulated
Financial Instifutions {RFis). the National Banking College provided three (3] modular courses to
ihe Direciors of Zenitnh Bank, Ghana.

The topics that constitute the modules were:

1. Cyber Risk Governance and Management for Directors.
2. Fraud Risk Govemance and Prevention
3. Driving ESG Practices: Board's Role from ESG Sfrategy to ESG Reporting

Enclosed is the Director Participation Transcript and six (8) Certificates of Participation for
Directors who successfully completed the 2023 Annual Corporate Governance Certification

Program.
Directors with outstanding modules will have the opportunity to participote in the™ Pan Bank™

Mop-Up session scheduled for February 20-22,2024. Upon completion of the outstanding
modules, the Directors will be duly certified as directed by the Bank of Ghana.

We extend our gratitude to all Directfors for their commitment to the fearning modules and
eagerly anticipate further engagement with them in 2024,

Yours sincerely,
5 TN

N 5 — = £
Dr. Stephen Antwi . CGloria Dartine Quartey (Ms.)
DIRECTOR OF STUDIES & TRAINING PRINCIPAL

cc: Second Deputy Govemor (BOG)
Head. Banking Supervision Depariment (BOG)

Encl. Certificates (6): 2023 Transcript (1)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATION PROGRAMME (2023)
ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LIMITED

DIRECTOR TRANSCRIPT
| { i AlE Board Entry Moduie | Module Il Module Il
No. Name of Directors Position Date Completion Completion Certificate Serial #
3 Date Date Date

1 Mrs. Freda Yuhan Duplan | Board Chairperson Dec 3,2019 | May 16,2023 | June 21, 2023 | June 23, 2023 | NBC/CG/BK/ZBG/2023106
2 Mr. Henry C. Onwuzurigbo | Managing Director Aug 20,2021 | May 16,2023 | June 21,2023 | June 23, 2023 | NBC/CG/BK/IBG/2023107
3 Mr. Kwasi Boatin Non-Executive Director Mar 25,2020 | May 16,2023 | June 21,2023 | June 23, 2023 | NBC/CG/BK/ZBG/2023108
4 Mr. Gabriel Ukpeh Non-Executive Director July 15,2016 | May 16,2023 | June 21,2023 | June 23, 2023 | NBC/CG/BK/Z8G/2023109
5 Mr. Charles Nimako Non-Executive Director Mar 30, 2023 | May 16, 2023 Absent | June 23, 2023 | Not Certified

6 Dr. Juliette Tuakli Ind. Non-Executive Director Dec 3,2019 | May 16, 2023 Absent | June 23, 2023 | Not Certified

7 Mr. Clifford Mensah Executive Director Mar 25,2022 | May 16,2023 | June 21,2023 | June 23, 2023 | NBC/CG/BK/ZBG/2023112
8 Mr. Daniel Agamah Company Secretary Aug 24,2005 | May 16,2023 | June 21,2023 | June 23, 2023 | NBC/CG/BK/ZBG/2023113

Module 1: Cyber Risk Governance and Management for Directors
Module 2: Fraud Risk Governance and Prevention for Directors
Module 3: Driving ESG Practices: Board's Role from ESG Strategy to ESG Reporting

Governance Structure

e The Board confirms that the Bank has a code of conduct which all directors have signed, and which directs
and guides the conduct and values expected of directors.

e The Board further confirms that every new director is taken through induction organised by the Group Head
Office through PricewaterhouseCoopers. Key Management personnel are taken through induction as
organised by the Bank’s HR Department and involving key area of focus.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
Governance Structure

e The Bank’s shareholding structure is as follows:

ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD

(99.42%) (0.58%)
Zenith Bank Plc Equatorial Cross Acquisition Co. Ltd
Country of Incorporation: Nigeria Country of incorporation: Ghana

(11.29%)
Major Shareholder
Jim Ovia, CFR

e No other shares are held by the Board of directors and key management personnel.
e The Board confirms the size and composition of the Board as at December 31, 2023 as follows:

Name of Directors Position Board Entry Nationality
Date

Mrs. Freda Yahan Board Chairperson (Ind. NED) | December 3, 2019 | Ghanaian

Duplan

Mr. Henry Managing Director August 20, 2021 Nigerian

Onwuzurigho

Dr. Adaora Umeoji Non- Executive Director December 20, Nigerian
2023

Mr. Kwasi Boatin Ind. Non-Executive Director March 25, 2020 Ghanaian

Mr. Gabriel Ukpeh Non-Executive Director July 15, 2016 Nigerian

Mr. Charles Nimako Ind. Non-Executive Director March 30, 2023 Ghanaian

Dr. Juliette Tuakli Ind. Non-Executive Director December 3, 2019 | Nigerian

Mr. Clifford Mensah Executive Director March 25, 2022 Ghanaian

e As at December 31, 2023:
e The Ghanaian membership on the Board was 50%.
e Ghanaian membership on the Audit Committee was 33%

e Ghanaian membership on the Risk, Cyber and Information Security Committee was 50%.
e Independent directors form 50% of the Board.

The Board confirms that no two related persons were serving on the Board and any financial holding company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Appointments (Board)

Mr. Charles Boakye Nimako was appointed to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairs the
Risk, Cyber and Information Security Committee of the Board. He was granted approval by the Bank of Ghana on
March 30, 2023.

Dr. Adaora Umeoji was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director. She was granted approval by the Bank
of Ghana on December 20, 2023.

Appointments (Key Management Personnel)

For the year under review, Mr. Michael Terkpetey Narh was appointed as Head of Legal, after receiving approval of
the Bank of Ghana on January 27, 2023. Mr. Moses Nelson Ngbeken was also appointed as Head, Due Diligence,
Chief Ethics and Complaints Officer after receiving approval of the Bank of Ghana on March 30, 2023.

There was no resignation from the Board or by a Key Management Personnel during the year.

Profile of Board Members

The profile of the Board members is as follows:

e Mrs. Freda Yahan Duplan

Board Chair

Mrs. Freda Yahan Duplan is the past Managing Director of Nestle Pakistan Limited. Prior to her stint in Pakistan,
she was the MD of Nestle Ghana and briefly the Head of Nestle Business Services in Manila, Philippines. Freda
is a trained Computer Scientist with over twenty-seven years working experience with the Nestle Group having
risen through the ranks to become the first African Female Market Head in the Nestle Group and the First
Female and Ghanaian Managing Director of Nestle Ghana Limited.

Prior to joining the Nestle Group in 1992, Freda worked briefly with Paul Hastings Janofsky & Walker in the
USA as an IT Systems Analyst, as well as an IT Consultant with Quistron Ghana Limited in Ghana.

¢ Henry Chinedu Onwuzurigbo

Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Henry C. Onwuzurigbo is the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer (MD/CEOQ) of Zenith Bank (Ghana)
Ltd. Before his appointment, he was the Executive Director of the Bank and prior to joining Zenith Bank Ghana,
Henry was an Executive Director in charge of Business Development and Treasury at Zenith Bank UK.

He comes into this role with over twenty-four (24) years broad-based wealth of experience in banking, spanning
across various business development functions. He has held Senior Management positions ranging from Head
of Operations, Head of Marketing, Branch Management, Regional/Zonal Management, Head of Inspection and
Deputy Group Chief Inspector in Zenith Bank Plc as well as the Head of Internal Audit of Zenith Pensions
Custodian Limited (a subsidiary of Zenith Bank PLC). He was also the Pioneer Head of Internal Audit in Zenith
Bank (UK) Ltd.
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He is a Chartered Accountant and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting. He is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (FCA), a Member of the Institute of Internal Auditors (UK), an Associate of
the Chartered Institute of Taxation, Nigeria, a Senior Member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers, Nigeria as
well as a Member of the Financial Reporting Council. He is also a Fellow of the Nigerian Institute of Credit
Administration.

He currently serves as a member of the Executive and Governing Council of the Ghana Association of Banks
(GAB) and a member of the Governing Council of the National Banking College, Ghana.

e Clifford Mensah

Executive Director

Clifford Mensah is an Executive Director at Zenith Bank (Ghana) Ltd. He is a qualified Chartered Enterprise
Risk Actuary with over a decade experience across the insurance and banking sectors in West Africa, with
expertise in large-scale corporate modelling.

Prior to joining Zenith Bank Ghana, Clifford was an Executive Director at Zenith General Insurance in Lagos,
Nigeria, where he oversaw Business Development, Operations and Profitability of the firm. He also worked as
an Associate Director at Ernst and Young (EY), Senior Manager at PwC Nigeria and has worked for several
Insurance firms in Nigeria, Ghana, Cameroon and Cote D’Ivoire (CIMA region).

He holds a Master’s degree with distinction in Actuarial Science from Heriot-Watt University, UK, and a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Mathematics and Statistics from the University of Ghana. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Actuaries in the UK (FIA) and a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries in the USA (FSA). He holds a
Chartered Enterprise Risk Actuary qualification (CERA) with the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries in the UK.

e Dame (Dr.) Adaora Umeoji, OON

Non-Executive Director

Dame (Dr.) Adaora Umeoji, OON is the current Deputy Managing Director of Zenith Bank Plc. She holds a
bachelor’s degree in Sociology from the University of Jos; a bachelor’s degree in accounting and a first- class
honours in Law from Baze University Abuja; a Master of Laws from the University of Salford, United Kingdom
and a Master’s in Business Administration (MBA) from the University of Calabar. She is also a graduate of the
Advanced Management Program (AMP) from Harvard Business School, a graduate of the Global Banking
Program from Columbia Business School and holds a doctorate degree in business administration from Apollos
University, USA.

She has attended the Strategic Thinking and Management Programme at the Wharton Business School, USA;
holds a Certificate in Economics for Business from the prestigious MIT Management Sloan School and a
Certificate in Leading Global Businesses from Harvard Business School, USA.

She is a fellow of notable professional bodies including the Chartered Bankers Institute of London, Chartered
Institute of Bankers of Nigeria, Institute of Credit Administration, Institute of Certified Public Accountants of

10
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Nigeria, Institute of Chartered Meditators & Conciliators, and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators of Nigeria, among others.

Dame (Dr.) Adaora Umeoji, OON is a Peace Advocate of the United Nations (UN- POLAC), and a Lady of the
Order of Knights of St. John International (KSJI) and was recently awarded a Papal Knight of the Order of St.
Sylvester by His Holiness Pope Francis.

Dame Dr. Adaora Umeoji, OON founded the Catholic Bankers Association of Nigeria (CBAN), a platform she
uses to promote ethical banking. She supports various healthcare initiatives across Nigeria’s six geopolitical
zones through the Pink Breath Cancer Care Foundation and her contributions towards improving humanity has
been recognized by various organizations including the Nigerian Red Cross.

In 2022, the Federal Government of Nigeria honoured her with Officer of the Order of the Niger (OON), as a
recognition of her contributions to nation building.

e Gabriel Ita Asuquo Ukpeh : Non-Executive Director

Gabriel Ukpeh is an internationally acclaimed consultant in business strategy, risk management, process re-
engineering and financial services, who was a Senior Partner and Risk Quality Leader for Africa at
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC).

He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria with over thirty-five (35) years’ experience in
Financial Audit and Reporting, as well as a member of the Institute of Taxation of Nigeria.

A graduate of accounting, Gabriel holds a Graduate Diploma in Business Administration from the University of
Warwick, Coventry, United Kingdom. He obtained a Master of Science (MSc) Degree in Contemporary
Accounting from the Leeds Metropolitan University, UK in 2009.

e Dr. Juliette Modupe Tuakli : Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Juliette Tuakli has been a leader in women’s, children’s and public health for over three decades. In this last
decade, at the helm of CHILDAccra Medical Group, she has managed the organisation’s expansion from a small
paediatric clinic into a widely recognised regional medical conglomerate providing medical care, community
health research and development, medical training for workers, students and researchers in Africa, England and
the USA. Her work has ranged from comprehensive health of women, children and families to tackling neglected
tropical diseases.

Dr. Tuakli is an alumnus of the University of Zambia Medical School and the University of California, Los
Angeles.

¢ Kwasi Agyeman Boatin : Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kwasi Agyeman Boatin is a seasoned investment consultant and a Chartered Certified Accountant with
almost four decades of experience in accounting and finance. He holds an MBA from the Henley Business School
in the UK with concentration in Finance, Entrepreneurship and Strategic Management. Prior to branching out
into consultancy, Mr. Boatin was the Director-General of the Social Security and National Insurance Trust
(SSNIT) from 2008 - 2010.

11
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Mr. Boatin is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and has served on several notable
boards in Ghana and abroad including the Ghana International Bank and Ecobank Transnational Incorporated
(ETI), where he has held the positions of Non-Executive Director.

His achievements include his appointment by the International Social Security Association (ISSA), Switzerland,
as Vice-Chairperson of the Technical Commission on Investment of Social Security Funds.

Charles Boakye Nimako : Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Charles B. Nimako is currently the Director of Africa Initiatives for Safe Water Network, a US based
NGO. He works with major corporate bodies and foundations to bring safe and affordable water to
communities using a market-based approach.

Before opening the Safe Water Network Ghana office in May 2010, Mr. Nimako was the Chief Executive
Officer of PepsiCo Franchise Holders, Beverage Investments Ghana Limited and SBC Beverages Ghana
Limited. While at PepsiCo, he served as the Director of Sales and Marketing for Ghana and Franchise
Operations Manager for Kenya, Uganda and Ethiopia. He was also attached as a consultant, and Project
Director, to a new PepsiCo franchise holder, AngoAlissar LDA, Luanda, Angola.

In his previous professional role, Mr. Nimako worked as a Management Consultant with McKinsey and
Company in Johannesburg, South Africa and London, UK. He also worked as an accountant with Coopers
and Lybrand (now PricewaterhouseCoopers) in Los Angeles, California and as an Audit Manager with great
Western Financial Corporation in Beverly Hills, California.

Mr. Nimako graduated in Economics and Accounting form Claremont Mckenna College in California and
obtained an MBA from Stanford University’s Graduate School of Business. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (CPA) and a current member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Assessment of Board Performance and Capacity Building

The Board confirms that the performance criteria used to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and of
individual directors are the internal and external assessments that are employed as per the requirements of the
Corporate Governance Directive. Regarding training and capacity building, locally, the Board was trained over three
modules by the National Banking College where they obtained the required certification. In addition, the Bank
organised offshore training for the Board in 2023 in Corporate Governance and Effective Risk Oversight.

12
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Executive Committee (EXCO)

The Bank has in place an Executive Committee which has oversight responsibility for the implementation of strategies
approved by the Board. It is chaired by the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer. It meets once every week to
discuss and adopt policy decisions. It also provides direction for the staff of the Bank and ensures effective and
efficient use of the Bank's resources.

The Executive Committee is made up of the following members:

Name of Member Position
Mr. Henry Onwuzurigbo Chairman
Mr. Clifford Mensah Member
Mrs Maebelle Nortey Member
Mr Abiodun Durosinmi Member
Mr Daniel Agamah Member
Mr Kwame Adadey Member
Mr James Wiafe Akenten Member
Mr George Imbrah Member
Mrs. Charlotte Impraim Member
Mr. Abdul-Jalil Alidu Member
Mr. Moses Nelson Ngbeken Member
Mr. Kofi Abrokwa Kokroko Member

Profile of EXCO MembersA profile of the Executive Management Committee is as follows:

Henry Chinedu Onwuzurigbo: Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer (see profile above)
Clifford Mensah: Executive Director (see profile above)
Maebelle Nortey: General Manager, Marketing

Maebelle is a Divisional Head with oversight responsibilities for Corporate Banking, some selected branches and
marketing sectors of the Bank. She has a wealth of experience in Product Development, Brand Strategy, Channel
Management, and Business Planning spanning over eighteen (18) years.

Maebelle holds a degree in Administration (Management) and a Master in Business Administration (Marketing)
both from the University of Ghana, Legon.

Abiodun Durosinmi: General Manager, Operations

Abiodun Durosinmi is a General Manager with direct responsibility for banking operations, Information
Technology, Information Security, Finance as well as other support departments of the Bank. He had over two
decades of experience in the Nigerian Banking Industry was the group’s Deputy Chief Compliance Officer (CCO)
at Zenith Bank Plc before his secondment to Zenith Bank Ghana in 2016.

Abiodun is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (FCA), and a Fellow of the Institute of
Credit Administration (FICA), Nigeria. He has obtained an MBA in Project Management from Manchester
Business School and an MSc. in Finance from University of Leicester.

13
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e Daniel Agamah: Company Secretary & General Counsel

Daniel Agamah is the Bank’s General Counsel and Company Secretary. He holds a first degree in Law and
Philosophy from the University of Ghana, Legon (1991), a Qualifying Certificate of Law from the Ghana School
of Law (1993) and a Masters Degree in International Law from the University of Cape Town, South Africa (2000)
and has held various positions in international law and private practice.

He also holds notable credentials as a Notary Public, a Certified Compliance Professional, and a Licensed
Insolvency Practitioner. In addition to the Ghana Bar Association, Daniel holds memberships in the Ghana
Association of Restructuring and Insolvency Advisors, the International Bar Association and the Institute of
Directors Ghana.

e Kwame Adadey: Divisional Head, Marketing

Kwame has a Master of Business Administration (MBA) Finance Option from the University of Ghana, an ACI
Dealer Certificate and is also a member of the Association of Financial Markets.

He joined Zenith Bank Ghana on November 1, 2005. He was Group Head in Marketing for four years and is now
Divisional Head overseeing eight (8) business groups of the Bank.

e James Akenten: Divisional Head, Marketing

James has twenty-one (21) years experience in banking and has held leadership positions at various levels; from
Relationship Officer through Branch Head, Sector Head, Zonal Head, Group Head to Divisional Head. As
Divisional Head, James currently overseas eleven business groups comprising three Head Office Sectors (Oil &
Gas/Energy, Commercial Banking and Public Sector) and branches sited across Accra, Tema, Koforidua, Ho and
Akosombo.

James holds MA, in Money, Banking and Finance from Middlesex University, United Kingdom; and a BA (Hons)
in Economics and Law, from Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology, Ghana. He has attended
various leadership and finance courses in the United Kingdom, United Arab Emirates, Nigeria, and South Africa.

¢ George Imbrah: Divisional Head, Marketing

George holds a Master of Business Administration Degree (MBA), Banking and Finance option from the Kwame
Nkrumah University of Science and Technology as well as a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics/Sociology from the
University of Cape Coast.

George is a Divisional Head, Marketing, and responsible for nine (9) Business Groups namely Telecoms &
Fintechs, Mining & Exports, Construction & Real Estates, Bono Regions, Northern and Upper East Regions.

¢ Charlotte Impraim: Head, Credit Risk Management

Charlotte Impraim is the Head of Credit Risk Management and Recoveries Department. She has over twenty
seven (27) years experience and special skill set in Risk Management, Credit Risk management, Recoveries,
Audit, Insolvency and Restructuring which cuts across the Oil and Gas, Finance and Manufacturing industries.

Charlotte holds a Master’s in Business Administration (Finance Option) from the University of Ghana as well as
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political Science and Sociology from the same institution. She is a Chartered Credit
Professional (CCP) and a Licensed Practitioner/Member of the Ghana Association of Restructuring and
Insolvency Advisors (GARIA).

14
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Abdul-Jalil Alidu: Chief Financial Officer

Abdul-Jalil Alidu is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) in charge of Financial Control and Strategic Planning at
the Bank, a position he has held since 2016. He had previously held the roles of Operations Manager and Deputy
Head of Internal Control and Audit.

Abdul-Jalil has over twenty (20) years of experience in internal controls, auditing, accounting, banking, and
finance as well as corporate strategy. He holds a Master of Science Degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in the United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration from the
University of Ghana. He is a Chartered Accountant and a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
(Ghana).

Moses Nelson Ngbeken: Divisional Head, Due Diligence, Ethics and Complaints

Mr Moses N. Ngbeken has over 24 years of banking experience covering Banking Operations, Business
Development, Branch Management and Compliance. He started his career in Branch Operations where he
performed creditably well. He played a key role in setting up of a new branch as the Pioneer Head of Operations
and worked in many branches of the Bank as an Operations and Business Development staff.

Moses is currently the Divisional Head responsible for Compliance, Due Diligence and Ethics. He holds a
Bachelor's degree (with honours) in Accounting from Ekiti State University (Formerly University of Ado-Ekiti)
and is an Associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria. He is also a Professional with
the Compliance Institute of Nigeria. He received the GMD/CEO award twice for Outstanding Performance and
Operational Efficiency.

Kofi Abrokwa Kokroko : Divisional Head, Marketing

Kofi Abrokwa Kokroko holds a BSc Agricultural Economics from the University of Ghana, Master of Business
Administration (MBA) Finance option from University of Cape Coast (UCC) and a Master of Science in Financial
Risk Management, UCC. He is also a member of the Chartered Institute of Administration and Management
Consultants-Ghana (CIAMC). He has over two decade of Banking experience spanning across Banking
Operations and Marketing.

Kofi is currently a Divisional Head, Marketing, and responsible for ten (10) business groups namely Mining &
Exports, Agric, Maritime sectors and branches in Takoradi, Tarkwa, Tema, and Cape Coast.
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Remuneration Policies

In line with Section 8.6 of the CGD, the Board oversees the design and operation of the compensation system for the
Bank. Periodically, the compensation system is reviewed by the Board Governance, Nominations and Remuneration

Committee and recommendations are made to the Board for approval.

The Board ensures that the levels of remuneration are sufficient to attract, retain, and motivate executive officers of
the Bank while ensuring that it is balanced to avoid excessive risk taking or potential risks to the Bank’s capital base.

The Board Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee reviews the compensation of Key Management

Personnel and make appropriate recommendations to the Board for approval.

The Board further confirms that the Executive Remuneration Policy aligns with the long-term sustainability of the
Bank by providing a mix of short-term and long-term remuneration to incentivise sustainable long-term performance
and that the directors, executive management, and staff remuneration are structured. Share options are currently not

part of executive remuneration.

Board Committees

The Board can confirm that there are five committees of the Board as follows:

e Audit
e Risk and Cyber Information Security
e Credit

e Governance, Nominations, and Remuneration
e Finance and General Purpose

Membership of Board Committees

Membership and composition of the Committees are as follows:

Audit Committee

i. Mr. Kwasi Boatin (Chair) - Independent Non-Executive Director
ii. Mr. Gabriel Ukpeh (Member) - Non-Executive Director
iii. Dr. Juliette Tuakli (Member) - Independent Non-Executive Director

Risk & Cyber Security Committee

i. Mr. Charles Nimako (Chair) - Independent Non-Executive Director
ii. Mr. Kwasi Boatin (Member) - Independent Non-Executive Director
iii. Mr. Henry Onwuzurigbo (Member) - Managing Director/CEO
iv. Mr. Gabriel Ukpeh (Member) - Non-Executive Director
Finance and General-Purpose Committee
i. Dr. Juliette Tuakli (Chair) - Independent Non-Executive Director
ii. Mr. Clifford Mensah (Member) - Executive Director
iii. Mr. Charles Nimako - Independent Non-Executive Director

D. Credit Committee

i. Mr. Gabriel Ukpeh Chair) - Non-Executive Director
ii. Mr. Henry Onwuzurigbo (Member) - Managing Director/CEO
iii. Dr. Juliette Tuakli (Member) - Independent Non-Executive Director
iv. Mr. Kwasi Boatin (Member) - Independent Non-Executive Director
v. Mr. Clifford Mensah (Member) - Executive Director
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¢ E. Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee

i. Mr. Gabriel Ukpeh (Chair) - Non-Executive Director
ii. Dr. Juliette Tuakli (Member) - Independent Non-Executive Director
iii. Charles Nimako - Independent Non-Executive Director

* Dr. Adaora Umeoji who joined the Board on December 20, 2023, will join selected committees at the Board’s next
meeting.

The Board can confirm that each of these committees have terms of reference which have been updated in accordance
with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Directive.

Summary of work carried out by the Board Committees required under the Corporate Governance
Directive (2018) during the year and focus of the next year’s planned activities.
Audit

For the year under review, this committee engaged with the Head of Internal Audit as well as the Head of Compliance
each on 4 separate occasions and took reports from them. The Committee provided oversight of the internal and
external audit functions, reviewed and approved the audit scope and frequency, whiles ensuring that Senior
Management is taking necessary corrective actions in a timely manner to address control weaknesses, non-
compliance with policies, laws and regulations and other problems identified by auditors as well as any other relevant
matter referred to the committee by the Board.

This process will continue in 2024 with the additional focus on investigative reports from the Internal control and
audit departments relating to staff-related investigations and outcome Of disciplinary hearings.

Risk, Cyber and Information Security

For the year under review the Committee met with the Chief Risk Officer and the Chief Information Security Officer
each on 4 separate occasions and took reports from them. In summary, for the year under review the Committee
assisted the Board and Management by creating a comprehensive approach to anticipate, identify, prioritize, and
manage material risks

to the bank’s business objectives.

The process will continue in 2024.

Board Meetings
During the financial year under review, five Board Meetings were held by the Board of Directors.

Schedule of attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings

Below is the schedule of attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings during the year.

Directors B FGPC CC GNRC AC RCISC
Freda Duplan N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Dr. Juliette Tuakli 5/5 4/4 N/A 4/4 4/4 4/4
[Mr. Gabriel Ukpeh 5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Kwasi Agyeman Boatin 5/5 4/4 4/4 4/4 4/4 N/A
Charles Nimako * 4/4 3/3 N/A 3/3 N/A 3/3
Henry Onwuzurigbo 5/5 N/A 4/4 N/A N/A 4/4
Clifford Mensah 5/5 N/A 4/4 N/A 4/4 4/4
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* Appointed March 30, 2023

NB. Board (B), Finance and General-Purpose Committee (FGPC), Credit Committee (CC), Governance, Nominations
and Remuneration Committee (GNRC), Audit Committee (AC), Risk, Cyber and Information Security Committee
(RCISC).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

N/A as used above implies 'Not applicable', that is, the Director in question was not a member of the stated committee
and hence could not have been expected to attend the Committee meeting.

Annual Meeting Calendar
The Board and its Committees met on the following dates in 2023:
Board Board Committees
March 24 March 23
May 10 May 9
July 21 July 20
October 19 October 18
December 7 N/A

Other Engagements of Directors

Director Name of Institution
Freda Duplan e Zen Petroleum
e DTRT Apparel Ltd
e Executive Women Network Ltd
Juliette Tuakli e Commonwealth Human Rights Initiative

e CarePoint International

Kwasi Boatin

e Secure Pensions Trust Limited

Gabriel Ukpeh e Zenith Bank Plc
Charles Nimako ¢ Switchback Developers Limited

¢ Community Water and Sanitation
Clifford Mensah None

Henry Onwuzurigbo

e National Banking College

e Ghana Association of Banks

Report on Board Evaluation

As part of measures to review the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices and procedures, the Board
carried out a self-assessment of members and committees. Remediation measures have been put in place to address
major exceptions, while the key findings were reported to the Bank of Ghana and Financial Intelligence Centre.

In line with the Corporate Governance Directive 2018, the Board also engaged an Independent Consultant (Ernst &
Young (E&Y) to facilitate a formal and rigorous independent evaluation of its processes and performances for 2022,
including its sub-committees, and of individual board members following the previous evaluation in 2020. The Board
addressed all the recommendations and key findings from the previous assessment and a status review was conducted
during the current assessment. The evaluation was done using questionnaires and direct interview of individual
directors.

The report concluded that the Board substantially complied with the provisions of the Bank of Ghana Corporate
Governance Directive and identified key areas for improvement. The Board discussed and resolved all the key
findings and recommendations contained in the current assessment before the final report was concluded and
submitted to the Bank of Ghana on February 19, 2024. Below is a transmission letter from EY.
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EY Ernst & Young Advisory Services Tel: +233302 779868 / 4725 / 9223 [ 2091
&0 Rangoon Lane Fax: +233 302 778894 | 2934
s:‘el:"lm'ﬂ Cantonments www.ey.com

PO Box KA 16009,
Alrport Accra, Ghana

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors 20 November 2023
P.0.Box CT 363,

Cantonment - Accra,

Ghana

Dear Sir,

2022 Board Assessment for Zenith Bank Ghana LTD. (ZBGL)

We have completed our engagement to independently assess your Board of Directors for the 2022 financial year. Our engagement was performed in accordance with our engagement
agreement dated 31 May 2023, and our procedures were limited to those described in that agreement.

EY conducted an assessment of your Board of Directors’ performance for the 2022 financial year to determine the effectiveness of the Board's governance practices and procedures against the
requirements of the Bank of Ghana's Corporate Governance Directive 2018, Fit and Proper Persons Directive (2019),Cyber and Information Security Directive (2020) for Banks, Savings and
Loans Companies, Finance Houses and Financial Holding Companies, as well as leading practices in corporate governance.

Thank you for entrusting us to work with you on this important assignment. We would like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation to the bank’s Board and the Board Secretary for the
cooperation and assistance provided to us during the course of our work. If you have any enquiries regarding our report, please feel free to contact the undersigned, Michael Sackey via e-mail:

michael. sackey(@agh.ey.com or cell: +233 20 222 0394.
Yours sincerely,

i

Michael Sackey
Partner, Consulting Services

EY Ernst & Young Advisory Services Tel: 4233302 779868 / 4725 / 9223 / 2091
60 Rangoon Lane Fax: +233302 778894 / 2934

Building a better Cantonments www.ey.com

weeking workd

PO Box KA 16009,
Alrport Accra, Ghana

Report of External Consultants on the Board Performance Assessment of Zenith Bank Ghana LTD.

We have performed an assessment of the Board of Zenith Bank Ghana LTD (ZBGL) for the year ended 31* December 2022 in accordance with the guidelines of the Bank of Ghana's
Corporate Governance Directive 2018, Fit and Proper Persons Directive (2019),Cyber and Information Security Directive (2020) for Banks, Savings and Loans Companies, Finance
Houses and Financial Holding Companies.

The directives mandate an evaluation of the Board's performance as a whole, including its sub-committees, and of individual Board members in order to review the effectiveness of its own
governance practices and procedures to determine where improvements may be needed, and make any necessary changes.

Section 47 of the directive requires an evaluation of the Board and its individual Directors every two years with external facilitation.

Our approach included the review of ZBGL's Board and Board sub-committee charters, and all relevant policies and procedures. We also administered an online survey to the Board
members as well as one-on-one interviews with Directors of the Bank.

The assessment is limited in nature, and therefore it may not necessarily disclose all significant matters about the Bank or reveal irregularities, if any, in the underlying information.

On the basis of our work, the Board of ZBGL Generally Conforms with the provisions of the Bank of Ghana's Corporate Governance Directive 2018, Fit and Proper Persons Directive
(2019),Cyber and Information Security Directive (2020) for Banks, Savings and Loans Companies, Finance Houses and Financial Holding Companies.

The outcome of the assessment and our recommendations have been articulated and included in our detailed report to the Board. This report should be read in conjunction with the
Corporate Governance Section of ZBGL's Annual Report.

For: Ernst & Young

( /&H//

Michael Sackey
Partner, Consulting Services
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Succession Planning

The Bank continues to pursue a robust succession planning process. At the Board level, the Bank has developed an
effective system for the nomination of qualified persons as directors. Succession planning strategy at the
Management level focuses on all critical roles at all levels in the organization, to ensure business and leadership
continuity. The Bank’s recruitment process has been aligned with the succession management process to serve as a
source of future appointments into key leadership positions both at the Board and Management levels.

Internal Control Framework

In compliance with Section 14.1 of the CGD, the Bank recognizes the importance of the Internal Control function in
the Bank’s overall operations and has put in place control systems to ensure that the Bank’s operations are carried
out in a safe and effective manner. The controls set out the risk acceptance, tolerance levels, and management
strategies for the Bank’s operations. The controls are well documented and made available to staff to guide their
operations. The Internal Audit function carryout periodic reviews of the controls and report deficiencies and
preventive or remediation actions by Management to the Board Audit Committee. The Bank has also implemented
an Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Framework, in line with the Group’s reporting requirements, to
strengthen the control environment. The function is headed by the Head of Internal Control, who reports directly to
the MD/CEO.

Internal Audit

The Bank has an internal audit function headed by the Head of Internal Audit who is appointed and assessed by the
Board Audit Committee and reports directly to that committee.

The Board confirms the internal audit function put in place is effective in providing an independent assessment of
the adequacy of, and compliance with established policies and procedures. The Head of Internal Audit submits
quarterly reports to the Board Audit Committee and the report is reviewed by the Board Audit Committee and
appropriate recommendations are made towards the strengthening of the function.

Conflicts of Interest

The Board has an approved Conflict of Interest Policy and Register. The document covers areas such as duties,
disclosures, responsibilities, reviews, and approval process for directors in relation to activities that could result in
conflict of interest. No conflict of interest or material conflict of interest case, involving any of the Directors, came to
the attention of the Board for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Ethics and Professionalism

Management has communicated the principles of ethics and professionalism in the Staff Handbook to its employees
in the discharge of their duties. The handbook was reviewed and approved by the Board. This handbook sets the
professionalism and integrity required for business operations which covers compliance with the law, conflict of
interest, bribery, and strict adherence to these principles to eliminate the potential for illegal practice. Staff and
directors are bound by and sign the code of conduct and professional ethics declaration prior to their appointment
and annually after their appointment. Upon their appointment, directors also swear an Oath of Confidentiality which
is administered by a High Court Judge in Chambers.

In compliance with the requirements of Section 17 of the CGD, the Bank has a Code of Conduct which captures issues
relating to whistle blowing, protecting the Bank’s assets, accuracy of record keeping, fair employment practices and
diversity, workplace responsibilities, discrimination and harassment and professional conduct, dealing with
suppliers, conflict of interest, privacy of information, insider trading, and personal behaviour among others.
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Related Party Transactions

The Bank has in place policies and procedures to ensure that all related party transactions are carried out at arm’s
length and in accordance with the Banks and Specialised Deposit Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930). This is
intended to ensure that there is no favourable treatment given to a related party. The Board reviewed all related party
transactions during the period under review. Related party transactions for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
disclosed in Note 33 of the financial statements.

Corporate Governance Framework
The Bank has a well outlined Corporate Governance framework which is captured in the Board and Board
Committees Charters as well as Management Committees Charters in line with Section 7.1 of the CGD. The Board

uses these documents to drive key Governance performance indicators in the Bank.

Management Reporting Structures

The Board monitors and ensures that the actions of Key Management Personnel are consistent with the strategy and
policies approved by the Board, including the risk tolerance/appetite and risk culture. The Bank has Management
committees that support the Managing Director in the day to day running of the Bank. On quarterly basis, the
Managing Director reports to the Board on business development, risk management, human resource development
as well as new developments in the industry and the markets (both local and international).

Annual Risk Management Declaration

In compliance with Section 39 of the Risk Management Directive 2021, the bank declares as follows:

February 23, 2024

The Head.

Banking Supervision Department,
Bank of Ghana,

1 Thorpe Road.

Accra

Dear Sir,

ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT DECLARATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 39 OF THE RISK

MANAGEMENT DIRECTIVE 2021

Pursuant to the foregoing Zenith Bank (Ghana) Lid ("the Bank™) declares that, to the best of its knowiedge,

and having made appropriate enquiries in all material respects:

1 The Bank has put in place systems for ensuring compliance with all prudential requirements.

2 The systems and resources that are in place for identifying, measuring. evaluating. controlling,
mitigating and reporting material risks, and the Risk Management Framework itself are appropriate
to the Bank and are commensurate with the size. business mix and complexity of the Bank.

3 The risk management and intermnal control systems in place are operating effectively and are
adequate.

= The Bank has a Risk Management Strategy (RMS) that complies with the Risk Management Directive
20217 and the Bank has complied with the requirements defined in the RMS. and

s The Bank is satisfied with the effectiveness of its processes and management information systems.

Thank you

Yours faithfully,
For: ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD. —

& ' — gk\ ~Cc S

CH ES B. AKO FREDA Y. PLAN
Chairperson, Board Risk Committee Board Chairperson
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Zenith
Bank (Ghana) Ltd (the “Bank”) as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards with the IAS 29 directive issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants Ghana (ICAG) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act
992) and the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930).

What we have audited
We have audited the financial statements of Zenith Bank (Ghana) Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The financial statements comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (the Code) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants and the independence requirements of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Impairment allowance on loans and advances to
customers

The Bank recognises impairment on its financial assets, using the
expected credit loss (ECL) methodology, in line with the
requirements of IFRS 9. The expected credit loss provision on
loans and advances is as follows;

Financial statement Gross amount | Impairment
line item

GH¢’000 GH¢’ 000
Loans and advances 2,336,239 89,257

We considered the ECL assessment of loans and advances to be a
matter of most significance to our current year audit as this
requires significant judgement in applying the methodology used
in determining the following estimates:

- Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) focusing on both the
qualitative and quantitative criteria used by the Bank.

- Definition of default and credit impaired assets.

- Probability of Default (PD): the likelihood that borrowers will
be unable to meet their debt obligations over a particular time
horizon.

- Loss given default (LGD): percentage exposure at risk that is
not expected to be recovered in an event of default.

- Exposure at default (EAD): amount expected to be owed the
Bank at the time of default.

- Forward-looking economic information and scenarios used in
the model.

The accounting policies, critical estimates and judgements and
impairment charge are set out in notes 2.10, 3.2, 5 (a) 11 and 21 to
the financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of controls
over the loans origination, monitoring and
provisioning process . We tested selected key
controls focusing on:

- the completeness and accuracy of data
used as inputs to the models including
the transfer of data between source
systems and the impairment models;

- periodic monitoring of credit facilities

- periodic analysis of outcome of
impairment provisioning against Bank
specific and macro-economic
conditions.

We tested the appropriateness of
management’s assumptions including
challenging management’s determination of:

- significant increase in credit risk,
- default,

- probability of default,

- loss given default, and

- exposure at default

We tested the appropriateness of the staging
of loans in the ECL model by independently
determining the staging of selected loans
based on customer’s repayment history,
compliance to loan covenants and other
qualitative factors.

We assessed the reasonableness of forward-
looking information used in the impairment
calculations by challenging the multiple
economic scenarios used and the weighting
applied.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy
of data used in the ECL models including the
use of collaterals.

We tested the appropriateness of disclosures
set out in the financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Impairment allowance and modification gain on
investment in debt securities

The expected credit loss provision on investment securities is as
follows;

Financial statement | Gross amount | Impairment
line item

GH¢’ 000 GH¢’ 000
Investment securities 6,14 o 5 38
Financial statement line GH¢’oo0
item
Modifcation gain 43,250

The ECL for investment securities is material to the financial
statements in terms of magnitude and level of subjective
judgement applied by management.

The government of Ghana announced a voluntary Domestic Debt
Exchange Programme (DDEP) which sought to exchange existing
eligible domestic notes and bonds. Management segmented the
investment securities into a portfolio of instruments eligible for
(DDEP) and those instruments that are not eligible for the
Programme. Certain out of model adjustments were calculated
and assessed based on management’s judgement.

The key areas of significant management judgement within the
ECL calculation include:

- Determination of SICR

- Application of out-of-model adjustments into the ECL
measurements

- Assessment of the input assumptions applied to estimate
the PD, EAD and LGD.

The determination of fair values of the new instruments on the
date of exchange was done using discounted cash flow models
which estimated the discount factors for the categories of bonds
exchanged in calculating the modification gain or loss on these
bonds.

The accounting policies, critical estimates and judgements and
impairment charge are set out in 2.10, 3.2, 5(a), 11 and 19 to the
financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of the DDEP
based on the Exchange Memoranda issued by
the Government of Ghana.

We tested the appropriateness of the staging of
the investment securities by independently
assessing management’s criteria for significant
increase in credit risk.

We assessed the reasonableness of out of
model adjustments by evaluating key
assumptions and inspecting the methodology.

We assessed the reasonableness of the
discount rates (key assumptions) used for
determining the present value of cash flows
expected from new bonds.

For stage 3 eligible domestic notes and bonds
we considered the impairment indicators,
uncertainties and assumptions made by
management in their assessment of the
recoverability of the investments.

We assessed the assumptions relating to
historical default experience, estimated timing
and amount of forecasted cashflows applied
within the PD, EAD and LGD for compliance
with the requirements of IFRS 9.

We assessed the appropriateness of the related
disclosures for investment securities in the
financial statements in accordance with IFRS 9.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate Information,
Report of the Directors, Corporate Governance Report, and the Value Added Statement but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and
the Financials at a Glance, Financial Highlights, Corporate Profile & Strategy, Branch/Agency Network, Products and
Services, Correspondent Banks, Board of Directors, Chairperson’s Message, Executive Management, Chief Executive
Officer’s Review and the Corporate Events & Social Responsibility Initiatives, which are expected to be made available
to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the the Financials at a Glance, Financial Highlights, Corporate Profile & Strategy, Branch/Agency
Network, Products and Services, Correspondent Banks, Board of Directors, Chairperson’s Message, Executive
Management, Chief Executive Officer’s Review and the Corporate Events & Social Responsibility Initiatives, and we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards with the IAS 29 directive issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants Ghana (ICAG) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and the Banks and
Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930), and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank’s internal control;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Bank to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and have communicated with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report on the following
matters. We confirm that:

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from our examination of
those books; and

iii)  the Bank’s statement of financial position and the Bank’s statement of comprehensive income are in
agreement with the books of account.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD (continued)

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS (continued)

In accordance with section 85(2) of the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930) we
hereby confirm that:

i)  theaccounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and the results of operations for the period
under review;

ii) we were able to obtain all the information and explanations required for the efficient performance of our duties
as auditor;

iii) the Bank’s transactions were within its powers; and
iv) the Bank has, in all material respects, complied with the provisions of this Act.
With respect to the provisions of the Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2022 (Act 1044), the Anti-Terrorism Act, 2008,

(Act 762) and the Regulations made under these enactments, we did not identify any instances of non-compliance
based on procedures we performed.

With respect to the provisions of section 21 of the corporate governance disclosure directive (2022) issued by Bank
of Ghana, we did not identify any instances of non-compliance regarding the Bank’s corporate governance practices
and report, based on procedures we performed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Destiny Selorm Attatsitsey
(ICAG/P/1619).

%&w«é«WaﬂW

PricewaterhouseCoopers (ICAG/F/2024/028)
Chartered Accountants

Accra, Ghana

15 March 2024

-

pwec
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ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

Interest income

Interest expense
Net interest income
Fees and commission income

Fees and commission expense
Net fees and commission income

Net trading income
Net income - financial instruments carried at fair value
Other income

Net trading and other income
Operating income

Impairment loss on financial assets
Personnel expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/income

Profit/(loss) after tax attributable to equity holders
of the Bank

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income attributable to equity
holders of the Bank

Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted

The notes on pages 32 to 102 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

9(a)
9(b)
10

11
12
22(a)
14

15

16

For the Year Ended 31
December
2023 2022
1,378,663 1,061,427
(364.870) (343.759)
1,013,793 717,668
225,006 176,208
( 20,459 ) ( 20,_42{2!
195,547 __155,781
332,656 156,749
433 4,977
53,121 13,765
386,210 175,491
1,595,550 1,048,940
(109,351) (1,193,674)
(211,740) (178,405)
(32,379) (26,921)
(219,692) 204,52.
1,022,388 (554,584)
(346.288) _ 134,814
676,100 (419,770)
676,100 (419,770)
0.17 -0.10



ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

As at 31 December

Assets Note 2023 2022
Cash and bank balances 17 4,175,590 2,063,202
Non-pledged trading assets 18(a) - 15,271
Pledged trading assets 18(b) - 1,951
Investment securities 19 5,845,900 3,419,839
Investments (other than securities) 20 252,161 400,699
Derivative financial assets 34 433 -
Current tax receivable 15 220,608 11,799
Loans and advances to customers 21 2,246,082 1,856,211
Property, plant and equipment 22 254,352 187,232
Intangible assets 23 14,073 9,917
Right-of-use assets 13 96,479 94,671
Deferred tax assets 24 113,421 325,018
Other assets 25 643,500 373,761
Total assets 13,863,499 9,659,571
Liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities 34 - 1,617
Deposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions 26 39,247 17,907
Deposits from customers 27 11,702,523 8,408,201
Borrowings 28 170,422 -
Other liabilities 29 155,070 124,712
Lease liabilities 13 119,108 108,678
Deferred tax liabilities 24 18,661 16,089
Total liabilities 12,205,031 8.677.204
Equity

Stated capital 30(a) 400,000 400,000
Statutory reserve 30(b) 520,411 444,899
Credit risk reserve 30(b) = 9,704
Retained earnings 30(b) 729,057 127,764
Total equity 1,658,468 082,367
Total equity and liabilities 13,863,499 9,659,571

A ™

The financial statements of the Bank on pages 28 to 102 were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2024.

The notes on pages 32 to 102 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

Year ended 31 December 2023

Balance at 1 January

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Regulatory and other reserve transfers
Transfer from credit risk reserve

Transfer to statutory reserve
Net transfers to reserves
Balance at 31 December

Year ended 31 December 2022

Balance at 1 January
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Regulatory and other reserve transfers
Transfer from credit risk reserve

Transfer to statutory reserve

Net transfers to reserves

Transactions with owners
Dividend paid to equity holders
Net transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December

Stated
Capital

400,000

400,000

Stated
Capital

400,000

400,000

Statutory Credit Risk Retained Total
Reserve Reserve Earnings

444,899 9,704 127,765 082,368

- - 676,100 676,100

- - 676,100 676.100

: (9,704) 9,704 s

84,512 - 84,512 -

84,512 (9,704) (74,808) =

29,411 - 729,057 1,658,468

Statutory Credit Risk Retained Total
Reserve Reserve Earnings

444,899 19,439 689,799 1,554,137

- - (419,770) (419,770)

- - (419,770) (419,770)

- (9,735) 9,735 -

- (9.735) (9.735) -

- - (152,000) (152,000)

- - (152,000) (152,000)

444,899 9,704 127,764 082,367

The notes on pages 32 to 102 are an integral part of these financial statements.

30



ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

Profit/(loss) before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Net impairment loss on financial assets

Net interest income

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Unrealised exchange difference on borrowings
Unrealised exchange difference on cash and banks
Fair value changes recognised in profit or loss
Modification Gain on investment securities

Changes in:

Investments (other than securities)
Non-pledged trading assets
Pledged trading assets

Investments securities

Mandatory cash reserve

Loans and advances to customers
Other assets

Deposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions
Deposits from customers

Other liabilities

Interest received

Interest paid

Corporate taxes refund received
Corporate taxes paid

Net cash flow generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Finance lease payments

Dividend paid

Drawdown on borrowings

Derivative liabilities

Repayment on borrowings

Net cash flow generated from (used) in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Balance at beginning

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash
equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note

292(a)
11

7
22(b)
28

9(b)
10

20
18(a)
18(b)

19

17

21

25

26

27

29

15
15

22
22(b)
23

13
31
28

33
28

17

17

Year ended 31 December

2023
1,022,388

32,379
109,351
(1,013,793)
(32)

15,227
(433)
!43,250!

121,837

148,538
15,271
1,951
(475,970)
(612,985)
(438,684)
(269,739)
21,340
3,281,733
! 422 )
1,792,870

1,446,109
(352,271)
9,381
_(352,727)

2,543,362

(90,373)
161

(9,808)
(100,020)

(12,292)

506,642
(2,050)
!:3_40,224!

152,026

2,595,368
2,286,213

4,881,581
(15,227)

4,866,354

The notes on pages 32 to 102 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2022

(554,584)

26,921
1,193,674
(717,668)

(2,177)

28,460

(87,293)

(4,977)

117.6

91,419
483,086
65,244
(508,437)
(381,110)
(180,008)

(1,393)
2,000,339

(488,163)
963,333

977,567
(326,978)
7,109
(169.501)

1,451,530

(37,281)
3,613
(6,331)

(39,999)

(8,355)
(152,000)

(30,244)
(184.527)

126

1,036,405
1,162,515

2,198,920
87,293

2,286,213



ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

NOTES
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Zenith Bank (Ghana) Ltd (the Bank) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Ghana. The
registered office is Zenith Heights, No 37 Independence Avenue, PMB CT 393, Accra. The Bank commenced universal
banking operations in September 2005 and operates under the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions
Act, 2016 (Act 930). The Bank is a subsidiary of Zenith Bank Plc, a bank incorporated in the Federal Republic of
Nigeria.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. The
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
with the IAS 29 Directive issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants Ghana (ICAG) and in the manner required
by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and the Banks and Specialised Deposit-Taking Institutions Act, 2016 (Act 930).
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 March 2024.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for pledged and non-
pledged trading assets and derivative financial instruments which are measured at fair value.

The ICAG issued a directive in November 2023 to accountants in business and accountants in practice, together with
an update in January 2024 on the application of IAS 29 in Ghana. The ICAG asserts in the directive that based on its
analysis of the quantitative and qualitative indicators referred to in IAS 29, Ghana was not a hyperinflationary
economy as of December 2023, therefore, IAS 29 will not be applicable for December 2023 financial reporting period.
In compliance with the directive, the financial statements of the Bank, including the comparative figures, have not
been stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting
policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 6.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The following standards and interpretations apply for the first time to financial reporting periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2023:

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Bank
Standards and interpretations effective during the reporting period

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The IASB amended IAS 1 to require entities to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting policies.
The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’ and explain how to identify when accounting
policy information is material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to be
disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting information. To support this amendment, the
IASB also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to provide guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
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ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Bank (continued)

Standards and interpretations effective during the reporting period (continued)

(ii) Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8

The amendment to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors clarifies how companies
should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important,
because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future events, but
changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well
as the current period.

(iii)  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments to IAS 12

The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. They will typically apply to
transactions such as leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations and will require the recognition of additional
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The amendment should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, entities should recognise deferred tax assets (to
the extent that it is probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:

« right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and
» decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost
of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised in retained earnings, or another component of
equity, as appropriate. IAS 12 did not previously address how to account for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases
and similar transactions and various approaches were considered acceptable. Some entities may have already
accounted for such transactions consistent with the new requirements. These entities will not be affected by the
amendments.

(iv) Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture — Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

The TASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures. The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets
between an investor and their associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment depends on
whether the nonmonetary assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture constitute a ‘business’ (as defined
in IFRS 3 Business Combinations).

Where the non-monetary assets constitute a business, the investor will recognise the full gain or loss on the sale or
contribution of assets. If the assets do not meet the definition of a business, the gain or loss is recognised by the investor
only to the extent of the other investor’s interests in the associate or joint venture. The amendments apply
prospectively.
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ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued/amended but not effective
(i) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current —Amendments to IAS 1

The narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are classified as
either current or noncurrent, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is
unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (e.g. the receipt of a waver or a breach of
covenant). The amendments also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. The
amendments could affect the classification of liabilities, particularly for entities that previously considered
management’s intentions to determine classification and for some liabilities that can be converted into equity. They
must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements in IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. These are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

(ii) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to IFRS 16

In September 2022, the IASB finalised narrow-scope amendments to the requirements for sale and leaseback
transactions in IFRS 16 Leases which explain how an entity accounts for a sale and leaseback after the date of the
transaction. The amendments specify that, in measuring the lease liability subsequent to the sale and leaseback, the
seller-lessee determines ‘lease payments’ and ‘revised lease payments’ in a way that does not result in the seller-lessee
recognising any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use that it retains. This could particularly impact
sale and leaseback transactions where the lease payments include variable payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate. These are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

(iii) Supplier finance arrangements — Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

The IASB has issued new disclosure requirements about supplier financing arrangements (‘SFAs’), after feedback to
an IFRS Interpretations Committee agenda decision highlighted that the information required by IAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures falls short of meeting user information needs. The
objective of the new disclosures is to provide information about SFAs that enables investors to assess the effects on an
entity’s liabilities, cash flows and the exposure to liquidity risk. The new disclosures include information about the
following;:

The terms and conditions of SFAs.1.The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are part of SFAs and the line items
in which those liabilities are presented.2.The carrying amount of the financial liabilities in (b) for which suppliers have
already received payment from the finance providers.3.The range of payment due dates for both the financial liabilities
that are part of SFAs, and comparable trade payables that are not part of such arrangements.4.Non-cash changes in
the carrying amounts of financial liabilities in (b).5.Access to SFA facilities and concentration of liquidity risk with
finance providers.

The IASB has provided transitional relief by not requiring comparative information in the first year, and also not
requiring disclosure of specified opening balances. Further, the required disclosures are only applicable for annual
periods during the first year of application. Therefore, the earliest that the new disclosures will have to be provided is
in annual financial reports for December 2024 year-ends, unless an entity has a financial year of less than 12 months.

These are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
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ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued/amended but not effective (continued)

(iv) Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture — Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

The IASB has made limited scope amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets between an investor and their
associates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment depends on whether the non-monetary
assets sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture constitute a ‘business’ (as defined in IFRS 3 Business
Combinations).

Where the non-monetary assets constitute a business, the investor will recognise the full gain or loss on the sale or
contribution of assets. If the assets do not meet the definition of a business, the gain or loss is recognised by the
investor only to the extent of the other investor’s interests in the associate or joint venture. The amendments apply
prospectively.

In December 2015, the IASB decided to defer the application date of this amendment until such time as the IASB has
finalised its research project on the equity method.

2.2  Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedi, which is the Bank’s functional currency. Except as indicated,
financial information presented in Ghana Cedi has been rounded to the nearest Ghana Cedi.

(b) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Bank at exchange rates prevailing at

the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the closing inter-bank mid rates at the reporting date.

35



ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency
at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in
foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at exchange rates ruling at the dates of initial recognition. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from re-translation at
year-end exchange rates of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in profit or loss are presented net within the corresponding item.
Foreign exchange gains and losses on other comprehensive income items are presented in other comprehensive income
within the corresponding item.

2.3 Interestincome and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The effective interest
method is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument, including prepayment options, but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all transaction costs, fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss.

2.4 Fees and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis when the related services are performed, and the
performance obligations associated with the contracts are delivered. Loan commitment fees for loans that are not
likely to be drawn down are deferred, together with related direct costs and recognised on a straight-line basis over the
commitment period. Fees and commission expenses, which relate mainly to transaction and service fees, are expensed
as the related services are received.

2.5 Nettrading income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, including realised and
unrealised fair value changes, interest and foreign exchange differences.

2.6 Netincome from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to non-derivative financial
assets held for trading. It includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends, and foreign
exchange differences.

2.7 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is established.
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NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Leases

The Bank leased various offices, branches, and other premises under non-cancellable lease arrangements. The lease
typically ran for a period of up to two years with an option to renew the lease after that date. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Bank.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on a rate, initially measured as at the commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Bank under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Bank, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. To determine
the incremental borrowing rate, the Bank:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received, and
¢ makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses comprising the
following;:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
any initial direct costs, and

restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. Right-of-use buildings held by the Bank under IFRS 16 are not revalued.
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NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Bank. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Bank’s operations. The majority
of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Bank and not by the respective lessor.

2.9 Income tax
Current income tax

Income tax payable on taxable profits is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise. Income tax
recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as an asset only to the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by
offset against current or future taxable profits.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
or paid to the Ghana Revenue Authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

o Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised
except;

e  Where deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient able profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in equity are also recognised in the statement of
changes in equity and not in the statement of comprehensive income. Deferred and current tax assets and liabilities
are only offset when they arise in the same tax reporting entity and the same taxation authority, and where there is
both the legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the intention to settle on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Bank considers the impact of tax exposures, including
whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may
involve a series of judgements about future events. New information may become available that causes the Bank to
change its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities would impact tax
expense in the period in which such a determination is made.

2.10 Financial assets and liabilities

2.10.1 Financial assets
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. its
amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or
received that are integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.10.1 Financial assets (continued)
Measurement methods (continued)

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (‘POCT’) financial assets — assets that are credit-impaired at initial
recognition — the Bank calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on the amortised
cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows. When the Bank revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the
respective financial assets or financial liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original
effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument or regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on settlement-date, the date on
which the Bank pays for or receives value for the instrument.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the
case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees
and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is
recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI,
which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity
recognises the difference as follows:

(a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a
Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets,
the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.
(b)  In all other cases, the difference is deferred, and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is
determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value
can be determined using market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
@) Classification and subsequent measurement
The Bank applies IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL);

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
Amortised cost.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.10.1 Financial assets (continued)

Measurement methods (continued)

)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's perspective,
such as loans and investment securities.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

the Bank's business model for managing the asset; and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Bank classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measurement categories:

a)

b)

c)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represents
solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI'), and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognised and measured. Interest income from these financial assets is included in 'Interest income' using
the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument's amortised cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in ‘other operating income'. Interest income from these financial assets is included in 'Interest
income' using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented in the profit or loss statement within ‘Net trading income' in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in 'Interest income' using the effective interest rate method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets and liabilities
2.10.1 Financial assets (continued)

Measurement methods (continued)

@) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
The above classifications are done using:

Business model: The business model reflects how the Bank manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That
is, whether the Bank's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial
assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of 'other' business model and
measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business model for a group of assets include
past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset's performance is evaluated and
reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.
Securities held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio of
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking. These securities are classified in the 'other' business model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows
and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial instruments' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (the "SPPI test'). In making this assessment, the Bank considers whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit
risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the
contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Bank reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
The reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are
expected to be very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net
assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Bank subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Bank's
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Bank's policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when those investments
are held for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses
are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Bank's
right to receive payments is established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.10.1 Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment

The Bank assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss ("ECL') associated with its debt instrument assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI and with the exposure arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts. The Bank recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL
reflects:

»  Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

e The time value of money; and

«  Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Refer to Note 3.2.2 for further details on the impairment process of financial assets.
(iii) Modification of loans

The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Bank assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the original terms. The Bank
does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

«  If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

»  Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.

«  Significant change in the interest rate.

If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a 'new' asset
at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently
considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including for the purpose of
determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Bank also assesses whether the
new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where
the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the
carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on de-recognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in de-recognition, and the
Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a
modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified
cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
2.10.1 Financial assets (continued)

(iv) De-recognition other than on a modification

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or
retained by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions, and others on behalf of customers to
secure loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at the higher of:

e The amount of the loss allowance; and
«  The premium received on initial recognition less income recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15.

Loan commitments provided by the Bank are measured as the amount of the loss allowance. The Bank has not provided
any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or

issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for
contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Bank cannot separately identify the expected
credit losses on the undrawn commitment component from those on the loan component, the expected credit losses on
the undrawn commitment are recognised together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined
expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a

provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ((continued)
2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.10.2 Financial Liabilities

i) Classification

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as measured at
amortised cost.

ii) Measurement

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured
at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any
reduction for impairment.

iii) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.10.3 Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market
to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates
all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price —
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the
financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
2.10.3 Fair value measurement (continued)

Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank measures assets and long
positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are managed
by the Bank on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are measured on the basis of a price that
would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for a particular risk exposure.
Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk
adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on
which the amount could be required to be paid.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

2.10.4 Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities may be lent subject to a commitment to repurchase it at a specified date (‘a repo’). Such securities are not
derecognised but retained on the statement of financial position when substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership remain with the Bank. Any cash received, including accrued interest, is recognised on the statement of
financial position reflecting its economic substance as a loan to the Bank.

Conversely, securities borrowed or purchased securities subject to a commitment to resell at a specified date (a ‘reverse
repo’) is not recognised on the statement of financial position as the transactions are treated as collateralised loans.
However, where the securities borrowed is sold to third parties, the obligation to repurchase the securities is recorded
as a trading liability at fair value and any subsequent gain or loss included in net trading income.

2.10.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with central banks and highly
liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its short-term

commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

2.10.6 Loans and advances

'Loans and advances’ are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and that the Bank does not intend to sell immediately or in the near term. Loans and advances to
banks are classified as hold to collect.

Loans and advances to customers include:
. those classified as loans and receivables; and
. finance lease receivables.

Loans and advances are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method. Loans and advances also include finance lease
receivables in which the Bank is the lessor.

When the Bank purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to resell the asset (or a
substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse repo or stock borrowing), the arrangement is
accounted for as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is not recognised in the Bank’s financial statements.

2.10.7 Investments

Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs and subsequently
accounted for depending on their classification as hold to collect or hold to sell.

2.10.8 Non pledged and pledged trading assets

The trading assets portfolio- both pledged and non pledged comprises debt securities purchased with the intent of
short-term profit taking. The Bank values these securities with reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets.

These securities are designated at fair value, with fair value changes recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.10.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains and losses arising
from a group of similar transactions such as in the Bank's trading activity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10.10 Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into, and they are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

2.11 Collateral

The Bank obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered appropriate. The collateral
normally takes the form of cash or securities in respect of other credit instruments or a lien over the customer’s assets
and gives the Bank a claim on these assets for both existing and future liabilities. Collateral received in the form of
securities is not recorded on the statement of financial position. Collateral received in the form of cash is recorded on
the statement of financial position with a corresponding liability. These items are assigned to deposits received from
banks or other counterparties. Any interest payable or receivable arising is recorded as interest payable or interest
income respectively except for funding costs relating to trading activities which are recorded in net trading income.

2.12 Property, plant and equipment
(6)) Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and capitalised borrowing costs. Items in work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the item of property and equipment and is recognised in other income/other
expenses in profit or loss.

(ii)) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and its cost can be measured
reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an
item of property and equipment since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and corresponding periods are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment 4 - 5years
Computers 3 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

2.13 Leasehold properties

Leasehold properties, representing lands held by the Bank under various leasehold agreements and the buildings on
them, are initially recognised at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, leasehold properties are amortised over the
lease term of the properties. The amortisation is recognised in profit or loss. The leasehold lands are presented in
property, plant and equipment by the Bank as an accounting policy choice and not included in right-of-use assets.

2.14 Intangible assets
Computer software

Software acquired by the Bank is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated
useful life of software is three years. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

2.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset that
generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of
units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs

to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2.16 Deposits and borrowings

Deposits and borrowings from other banks are the Bank’s sources of debt funding. Deposits and borrowings from other
banks are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except where the Bank chooses to carry the liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss.

2.17 Employee benefits
(©) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods
during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(ii) Provident fund

The Bank has a Provident Fund Scheme for all employees who have completed their probation period with the Bank.
Employees contribute 5% of their basic salary to the Fund whilst the Bank contributes 12.5%. Obligations under the
plan are limited to the relevant contributions, which are settled on due dates to the fund manager.

2.18 Stated capital and reserves
@) Stated capital

The Bank’s stated capital is not redeemable by holders in the normal course of business and bears an entitlement to
distributions that is non-cumulative and at the discretion of the Directors. Accordingly, they are presented as a
component of issued capital within equity.

(ii) Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement
of the equity instruments.

(itt) Dividend on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders. Dividend
proposed which is yet to be approved by shareholders, is disclosed by way of notes.

2.19 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Introduction and overview

The Bank’s activities expose the business to risks. These risks are managed in a targeted manner. Key risks arising
from core functions are identified and measured to facilitate managing and determining risk positions and capital
allocations. The Bank has exposure to the following types of risks from its use of financial instruments:

credit risk
liquidity risk
market risks
operational risks

The Bank continues to assess its overall risk management framework and governance structure. This note presents
information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the Bank’s management of capital.

3.1.1 Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s risk management
framework. The Risk Management Committee of the Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Bank’s
risk management policies over specified areas.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse risks faced by the Bank, set appropriate
risks limits and controls and monitor risks and adherence to established policies. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. Through
training and setting of standards and procedures, the Bank has developed a disciplined and reasonably effective control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Bank’s Risk Management Committee of the Board is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Bank’s risk
management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation
to risks faced by the Bank.

3.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Bank’s customers, clients or market counterparties
fail to fulfil their contractual obligations to the Bank. Credit risk arises mainly from commercial and consumer loans
and advances and loan commitments arising from such lending activities, but can also arise from credit enhancements,
financial guarantees, letters of credit, endorsements and acceptances.

The Bank is also exposed to other credit risks arising from investments in debt securities and other exposures arising
from its trading activities (‘trading exposures’), including non-equity trading portfolio assets, derivatives and
settlement balances with market counterparties and reverse repurchase loans.

Settlement risk

The Bank’s activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions and trade. Settlement risk is the risk
of loss due to the failure of a company to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as
contractually agreed.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Bank’s business; the directors therefore carefully manage the exposure to
credit risk. The credit risk management and control are centralised in a credit risk management team headed by the
Chief Risk Officer, which reports to the Board of Directors and head of each business unit regularly.

The Bank has well documented policies and procedures for managing credit risk. The policies are based on the
principle of: Management responsibility; Defined credit approval authorities; Set standards for risk management;
Consistent approach to origination of credit, documentation and problem recognition; and Portfolio management
strategies.

The risk that counterparties might default on their obligations is monitored on an ongoing basis. To manage the level
of credit risk, the Bank deals with counterparties of good credit standing and for which in its assessment the
transactions are appropriate, and risks understood by the counterparty.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation
to one borrower, or group of borrowers, and to industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and
subject to annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of credit risk by product and industry sector are approved
by the Board of Directors. The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted by sub-limits
covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking
of security for funds advances, which is common practice. The Bank reviews the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral for credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

. Mortgages over residential properties;
o Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable; and
. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities.

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Bank considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk when one or more of
the following quantitative, qualitative or backstop criteria have been met:

Quantitative criteria:

The remaining Lifetime PD at the reporting date has increased, compared to the residual Lifetime PD expected at the
reporting date when the exposure was first recognised.

Qualitative criteria

For Loan portfolios if the borrower meets one or more of the following criteria:

o In short-term forbearance

o Direct debit cancellation

o Extension to the terms granted

o Previous arrears within the last [12] months

o If the borrower is on the Watch list and/or the instrument meets one or more of the following criteria:
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) (continued)

e Significant increase in credit spread

e Significant adverse changes in business, financial and/or economic conditions in which the borrower operates

e Actual or expected forbearance or restructuring

e Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating results of the borrower

e Significant change in collateral value (secured facilities only) which is expected to increase risk of default

e Early signs of cash flow or liquidity problems such as delay in servicing of trade creditors/loans. The assessment
of SICR incorporates forward-looking information and is performed on a weekly basis at a portfolio level. The
criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and reviewed periodically for appropriateness.

Backstop

A backstop is applied, and the financial instrument considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk
if the borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments.

Low Credit Risk Exemption

The Bank has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial instruments in the period ended 31 December
2023.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Bank defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired,
when it meets one or more of the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria
The borrower is more than 9o days past due on its contractual payments.

Qualitative criteria
The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the borrower is in significant financial difficulty. These
are instances where:

«  Theborrower is in long-term forbearance

«  The borrower is deceased

«  The borrower is insolvent

o The borrower is in breach of financial covenant(s)

+  An active market for that financial asset has disappeared because of financial difficulties

«  Concessions have been made by the lender relating to the borrower's financial difficulty

«  Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

«  Financial assets are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

The criteria above have been applied to all financial instruments held by the Bank and are consistent with the definition
of default used for internal credit risk management purposes. The default definition has been applied consistently to
model the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given Default (LGD) throughout the Bank's
expected loss calculations.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

An instrument is considered to no longer be in default (i.e. to have cured) when it no longer meets any of the default
criteria for a consecutive period of six months.

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or Lifetime basis depending on whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-
impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default
(EAD), and Loss Given Default (LGD), defined as follows:

e The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over the next 12
months (12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

e EADis based on the amounts the bank expects to be owed in the event of, and at the time of default.

e  Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Bank's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD
varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.
LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default (EAD).

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD and for each individual exposure or collective segment
(financial instruments that exhibit similar characteristics are grouped and assessed for impairment collectively. These
are instruments that share common risk features, tenure, rate, among others).

These three components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not
prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This effectively calculates an ECL, which is then discounted back to the
reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how
defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of the loans. The maturity
profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD. These
assumptions vary by product type. The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation — such as how the maturity profile
of the PDs and how collateral values change etc. — are monitored and reviewed on a quarterly basis. There have been
no significant changes in estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the reporting period.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques (continued)
Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate forward-looking information. The Bank has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk and expected credit losses
for each portfolio.

Economic Variable Assumptions

The most significant period end assumptions used for the ECL estimate as at 31 December 2023 are set out below:

Scenario Weight GDP Growth Consumer Price Index
% % %

Base Case 40 1.5 20.4

GDP up; CPIup 16 2.5 30.4

GDP down; CPI down 16 0.5 284

GDP up; CPI down 10 2.5 28.4

GDP down; CPI up 18 0.5 30.4

The forward-looking economic information affecting the ECL model are as follows:

1. GDP Growth — GDP growth is used to assess the relative health of the economy. Forward looking information
is incorporated by using the projected GDP growth rate for the current year as a base.

2. Consumer price index (CPI) — CPI is used due to its influence on monetary policy and on interest rates. Interest
rate has an impact on borrowers’ likelihood of default. Forward looking information is incorporated by using
the expected change in inflation rates for the next three quarters.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Investment securities

The Bank’s investments comprise investments in Government of Ghana bonds and Cocoa Board bonds.
Impact of Ghana’s Domestic Debt Exchange Programme (DDEP) on investment securities

On 5 December 2022, the Government of Ghana announced Ghana’s Domestic Debt Programme (DDEP). The
Programme invited eligible bondholders to voluntarily exchange eligible local currency bonds issued by the
Government of Ghana, ESLA and Daakye bonds for a new series of bonds to be issued by the Government. The
Programme sought to extend the tenures of the eligible securities and reduce their coupons to an effective rate of about
9%. The Government also explained that there will be two distinct groups of bonds which will be exchanged as follows:

o Bonds maturing in 2023 replaced with 7 new bonds that matures from 2027 to 2033 inclusive; and
. All other bonds maturing after 2023 replaced with 12 new bonds that matures from 2027 to 2038 inclusive.

On 14 July 2023, the government further invited eligible bondholders to voluntarily exchange eligible USD bonds
issued by the Government of Ghana for a new series of bonds to be issued by the Government. The Programme sought
to extend the tenures of the eligible securities and reduce their coupons to an effective rate of about 3%. The
Government also explained that bondholders of the old bonds will receive 50% each of the old bonds in new bonds
that mature in 2027 and 2028 respectively.

Ghana Cocoa Board also launched a debt exchange programme on 14 July 2023 and invited eligible holders of cocoa
bills to voluntarily exchange such bills for a new series of bonds to be issued by the Ghana Cocoa Board. The
Programme sought to extend the tenures of the eligible securities and reduce their coupons to an effective rate of about
13%. Cocoa Board also explained that holders of the old bills will receive five (5) new bonds that mature from 2024 to
2028 inclusive in the ratio of 5%, 20%, 25%, 25% and 25% for each of 2024-2028 respectively.

The Bank assessed the bonds eligible for exchange under the DDEP as credit-impaired. As a result, the carrying
amounts of the existing bonds were reduced to the fair value of the new bonds calculated as the present value of the
cash flows using a discount rate representative of the sovereign risk of the country and Ghana Cocoa Board.

The difference between the fair value of the new instruments and the carrying amount of the original assets was
recognised as modification gain or losses in the statement of comprehensive income.

Sensitivity analysis -Investiment securities under the DDEP programme

The sensitivity of the impairment provision to a 1% change in the discount rate is set out below:

2023 2022
1% decrease in discount rate 283,191 684,870
Base 204,388 784,734
1% increase in discount rate 305,584 877,229

56



ZENITH BANK (GHANA) LTD
Financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

Maximum exposure to credit risk 2023 2022
Credit risk exposures relating to on balance sheet assets are

as follows:

Balances with Bank of Ghana 2,995,933 1,621,225
Investment securities 6,140,288 4,583,273
Balances with banks 894,557 1,114,289
Non pledged trading assets - 15,271
Pledged trading assets - 1,951
Investments other than securities 252,161 400,699
Loans and advances to customers 2,336,239 1,946,036
Other assets (excluding non-financial assets) 611,829 351,595
Credit risk exposures relating to off balance sheet items are

as follows:

Financial guarantees and letters of credit 1,309,428 1,618,955
At year end 14,540,435 11,653,294

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Bank at 31 December 2023, without
taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures
set out above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the statement of financial position.

As shown above for the Bank, 16% (2022: 17%) of the total maximum exposure is derived from loans and advances
and investment securities and trading assets represent 42% (2022: 39%).

The Bank’s loans and advances were categorised by the Bank of Ghana prudential guidelines as follows:

. Exposures that are neither past due nor impaired;
. Exposures that are past due but not impaired; and
. Individually impaired facilities.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held (continued)

Note 2023 2022
Maximum exposure to credit risk
Carrying amount 21 2,246,082 1,856,211
Amount committed/guaranteed 32 1,309,428 1,618,955
Grade 1—3: Low—fair risk — Current 2,299,778 1,751,477
Grade 4—5: Low—watch list 21,392 120,705
Grade 6: Substandard 87 112
Grade 7: Doubtful 70 283
Grade 8: Loss e
Total gross amount 2,336,239 1,046,036
Allowance for impairment (89.257) 89,825)
Net carrying amount 2,246,982 1,856,211

Off balance sheet - Maximum exposure

Letters of credit - Grade 1—3: Low — fair risk 87,713 477,572
Financial guarantees - Grade 1—3: Low — fair risk

1,221,715 1,141,383
Total exposure 1,309,428 1,618,955

Loans with renegotiated terms

Gross carrying amount

Allowance for impairment —2= - =

Net carrying amount
Stage 1 (performing) loans and advances

Grade 1—3: Low — fair risk 2,299,778 1,751,477
Stage 2 (underperforming) loans and advances

Grade 4-5: Watch list 21,392 120,705
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held (continued)

Stage 3 (impaired or non-performing) loans and 2023

advances

90-180 days - Substandard 87

180-360 days - Doubtful 70

36odays+ - Loss 14,911
15,068

Allowance for impairment

Stage 3 14,886
74,371

Stage 1 and 2
89,257

Stage 1 (performing) loans and advances

2022

112
383

73,854

40,373
49.452

89,825

The quality of credit exposure to customers and banks and other financial institutions that were neither past due nor
impaired were assessed with reference to the Bank of Ghana prudential guidelines adopted by the Bank for its internal

grading purposes.
Loans and advances graded current are not considered past due or impaired.

This category is made up as follows:

December

2023 Term loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total
Current 1,539,525 743,207 17,046 2,299,778
Total 1,539,525 743,207 17,046 2,299,778
December

2022 Term loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total
Current 1,422,123 309,180 20,174 1,751,477
Total 1,422,123 309,180 20,174 1,751,477
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held (continued)

Stage 2 (under-performing) loans and advances

Loans and advances graded internally as current and OLEM may be past due but are not considered impaired, unless
other information is available to indicate the contrary. Gross amount of loans and advances by class to customers that
were past due but not impaired were as follows:

December 2023 Term loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total
Past due but not impaired 20,792 600 - 21,392
Total 20,792 600 - 21,392
December 2022 Term loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total
Past due but not impaired 118,034 2,671 - 120,705
Total 118,034 2,671 - 120,705

Stage 3 (impaired or non-performing) loans and advances

The breakdown of the gross amount of loans and advances individually impaired by class, along with the fair value of
related collateral held by the Bank as security, are as follows:

31 December 2023 Term loans Overdrafts Staffloans Total
Individually impaired loans - 15,069 - 15,069
Specific impairment allowance - (14,886) - (14,886)
Net amount 183 183
Fair value of collateral 9,739

31 December 2022 Term loans Overdrafts Staff loans Total
Individually impaired loans - 73,854 - 73,854
Specific impairment allowance - (40,373) - (40,373)
Net amount - 33,481 - 33,481
Fair value of collateral - 49,456 - 49,456
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3.2.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held (continued)

At 31 December 2023, the Bank’s loans and advances were categorised under IFRS 9 as follows:

. Stage 1 — At initial recognition - Performing

. Stage 2 — Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition - Underperforming

o Stage 3 — Credit impaired — Non-performing

At 31 December 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Term loans 1,539,526 20,792 - 1,560,318
Overdraft 743,206 600 15,069 758,875
Staff loans 17,046 - - 17,046
Gross loans and advances to 2,299,778 21,392 15,069 2,336,239
customers
Loss allowance (68,434) (5,937) (14,886) (89,257)
Carrying amount 2,231,344 15,455 183 2,246,982

31 December 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Term loans 1,422,123 118,034 73,854 1,614,011
Overdraft 309,180 2,671 - 311,851
Staff loans 20,174 - - 20,174
Gross loans and advances to 1,751,477 120,705 73,854 1,946,036
customers
Loss allowance (27,678) (21,774) (40,373) (89,825)
Carrying amount 1,723,799 98,931 33,481 1,856,211
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3.2.3 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held (continued)

At 31 December 2023, the Bank’s investment securites were categorised under IFRS g as follows:

. Stage 1 — At initial recognition - Performing

. Stage 2 — Significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition - Underperforming

o Stage 3 — Credit impaired — Non-performing

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage1  Stage2  Stage3 Total
2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022

Government
of Nigeria
bills - - - - 452,579 - - 452,579
Cocoa Board - - 57,103 57,103 - - - -
bonds
Government
of Ghana
treasury bills 2,179,151 - - 2,179,151 - 48,654 - 48,654
Government
of Ghana
bonds - - 3.904,034 3,904,034 - _962,043 3,119,997 4,082040

Gross amount 2,179,151

3,961,137 6,140,288 452,579 1,010,697 3,119,997 4,583,273

Impairment - - (294.388) (294.388) _(6.175) (203.314) (953.945) (1.163,434)
Total 2,179,151 - 3,666,749 5,845,000 446,404 _ 807,383 2,166,052 3,419,839
Current 2,179,151 493,249
Non-current 3,666,749 2,026,500

All other financial assets of the Bank with credit risk exposure are neither past due (underperforming) nor impaired
(non-performing).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2.4 Collaterals and other credit enhancements

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking
of security for funds advanced, which is common practice. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

e Mortgages over residential properties.

e Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable.

e Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities.
Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loans and advances depends on the nature of the instrument.
Longer-term finance and lending to corporate entities are generally secured; revolving individual credit facilities are
generally unsecured.

In addition, in order to minimise the credit loss, the Bank will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon
as impairment indicators are identified for the relevant individual loans and advances.

The Bank’s policies regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period and there
has been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral held by the Bank since the prior year.

The Bank closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more
likely that the Bank will take possession of collateral to mitigate potential credit losses. Financial assets that are credit
impaired and the related collateral in order to mitigate potential losses are shown in note 3.2.3 above.

During the year, the Bank did not repossess collaterals (2022: Nil).
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3.2.5 Concentration of credit risk

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk from loans and
advances is shown below.

Loans and advances to customers

2023 2022
Carrying amount 2,246,982 1,856,211

Concentration by product:
Overdrafts 758,875 479,155
Term loans 1,426,884 1,422,266
Staff loans 17,046 20,174
Finance leases 133.434 24,441
Gross loans and advances 2,336,239 1,946,036
Less: Impairment (89.257) (89.825)
2,246,082 1,856,211

Concentration by industry:
Financial institutions 189,681 22,521
Manufacturing 561,715 554,068
Public sector - 122,485
Retail and consumer 133,156 216,513
Energy 29,498 83,094
Telecom 40,000 121,017
Mining and construction 502,455 125,927
Others 879,735 700,411
Gross loans and advances 2,336,239 1,946,036
Less: allowance for impairment (89,257) (89,825)
Net loans and advances 2,246,082 1,856,211
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3.2.6 Geographical concentration of assets and liabilities and off balances sheet items

2023 2022

In Ghana Outside Ghana In Ghana Outside Ghana
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,468,026 707,564 2,057,317 905,885
Non-pledged trading assets - - 15,271 -
Pledged trading assets - - 1,951 -
Investment securities 5,845,900 - 2,967,286 452,553
Investments (other than securities) 252,161 - 400,699 -
Loans and advances to customers 2,246,982 - 1,856,211 -
Other assets 643,500 - 373,761 -

12,456,569 707,564 7,672,496 1,358,438
Liabilities
Borrowings 170,422 - - -
Deposits from customers 11,702,523 - 8,408,201 -
Deposits from other banks 39,247 - 17,907 -
Other liabilities 155,070 - 124,712 -
Lease liabilities 119,108 - 108,678
Total liabilities 12,186,370 _ 8,650,498 )
Off balance sheet items
Letters of credit 87,713 = 477,572 -
Guarantees and indemnities 1,221,715 - 1,141,383 -

17309,428 - 1:6185955 B

3.2.7 Key ratios on loans and advances

1. Loan loss provision ratio is 3.8% (2022: 4.6%);
ii.  Percentage of gross non — performing loans with respect to Bank of Ghana Prudential Norms (individually
impaired) to total gross loans and advances is 1% (2022: 3.80%); and
iii. Ratio of fifty (50) largest exposure (gross funded) to total exposure is 91.85% (2022: 85.49%).

3.2.8 Economic Challenges and ECL measurement

In line with the bank’s existing risk management framework, there were no further deterioration in the bank’s risk
assets. The bank’s risk portfolio is well diversified, and this contributed to the high quality of risk assets. However, in
line with developments in the macroeconomic environment and the need to consider this information in assessing
the probability of default, the bank undertook a review of its ECL model and assumptions in 2022 and 2023, leading
to the following;:
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a. Increase in average percentage rate (APR) from 27.46% to 29.15% in line with market dynamics’
Revision of the LGD from 37.72% to 37.43%,

c. Increase in the impact of macroeconomic forward-looking data on PD from 2.30% for GDP to 3.52%; and
CPI from 6.40% to 3.28%

d. Decreasing the scenario weights for the worst case from 30% to 18%.

3.2.9 Write-off Policy of Loans and Advances

Credit impaired financial instruments (non-performing), that remained unrecovered after a given period are written
off. This happens after the bank has exhausted all avenues for recovering the outstanding balance and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. For any outstanding exposure to qualify for write off, it should have been approved
by the Board and met all the Bank of Ghana’s prudential guidelines (classified as “Loss” for a period of not less than
two years, and fully provisioned).

3.3 Liquidity risk

‘Liquidity risk’ is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset when they fall due.

3.3.1 Management of liquidity risk

The Bank maintains liquidity limit imposed by its local regulator, Bank of Ghana and the overall liquidity has always
been within the regulatory limit of Bank of Ghana. Treasury monitors compliance of all branches to ensure that the
Bank maintains optimum liquid assets. The Bank aims to be in a position to meet all obligations, repay depositors,
fulfil commitments to lend and meet any other commitments.

Treasury unit receives information from other business units regarding the liquidity profile of their financial assets
and liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from projected future business. Treasury unit then
maintains a portfolio of short-term liquid assets, largely made up of short-term liquid investment securities, loans and
advances to banks and other inter-bank facilities, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Bank.

All liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by ALCO. Daily reports on the liquidity position

of the Bank is submitted to senior management and summary report, including any exceptions and remedial action
taken, is submitted regularly to ALCO on monthly basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

3.3.2 Non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk by remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than 3-6 6-12 1to5 More than To